
Tohono O'odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

April 11, 2024 

TOCC Boardroom, Gewkdag Ma:cidag Ki: 

S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ

In Person & Virtual Meeting 



   Tohono O’odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ  
      Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

   Thursday, April 11, 2024, 9:00 a.m. 
   TOCC Boardroom, Ma:cidag Gewkdag Ki:, S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ 

      In Person and Virtual Meeting – Phone, Internet via Zoom 

AGENDA 

General Matters       Page No. 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
2. Invocation
3. Review and Approval of Agenda
4. Announcements and Upcoming Events
5. Minutes from March 14, 2024 BOT Regular Meeting 02 
6. Call to the Audience
7. Coronavirus Update

New Business 

1. Annual Election of TOCC Board of Trustees Officers

2. Financial Report – Dean of Finance
• February 2024 09

3. Human Resources Report – HR Generalist
• March 2024 44

4. Education Division – Academic Dean
• TOCC Grant Proposal Submission Authorization - AICF 48

5. Dual Enrollment IGA – Dual Enrollment Coordinator
• Ajo Unified School District 50

Reports – by Division and Division Components 

1. President, Human Resources, Operations, O'odham Ñi'okĭ Ki:, Apprenticeship Program 62
2. Education Division, O’ohana Ki:, NSF STEM, T-Ba’itk (Faculty Senate) 67
3. Student Services Division 70
4. Sustainability, Information Technology, Office of Institutional Effectiveness,

Workforce and Community Development 73
5. Student Life, Residence Life, Athletics & Wellness, Security 77

General Matters 

8. Executive Session

Adjournment 

1



Tohono O’odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 14, 2024 
9:00 a.m. 

TOCC Boardroom, Ma:cidag Gewkdag Ki:, S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ 
In Person / Virtual Meeting 

GENERAL MATTERS 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call

The Board of Trustees Regular Meeting was Called to Order at 9:03 a.m. by Chairperson Ofelia
Zepeda. Four (04) members were present and a Quorum was established.

Present Excused 
Absence 

Unexcused 
Absence 

Attendance 
Time 

Board of Trustees 

X 9:03 a.m. Dr. Ofelia Zepeda, Chairperson 
X 9:03 a.m. Treena Parvello, Secretary 
X 9:03 a.m. Jonas Robles, Elder Member 
X 9:03 a.m. Mary Bliss, Member 

Administration Members 
X 9:03 a.m. Dr. Paul Robertson, President 
X 9:03 a.m. Yolanda Pacheco, Dean of Student Services 
X 9:03 a.m. Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 
X 9:03 a.m. Laura Sujo-Montes, Academic Dean 
X 9:03 a.m. Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 

Recorder 
X 9:03 a.m. Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 

Guests 
X 9:03 a.m. Joseph Renegar, Human Resources Generalist 
X 9:03 a.m. Luke Vavages, Residence Life Coordinator 
X 9:03 a.m. DeAnndra Porter, Traditional Food Systems Outreach 
X 9:03 a.m. Reyna Noriega, Computer Literacy Trainer 
X 9:03 a.m. Adrianne Rios, Language Specialist, O'odham Ñi’okĭ Ki 
X 9:03 a.m. Lynn (Eunice) Liston, Administrative Assistant, O'odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: 
X 9:03 a.m. Carmella A. Pablo, Principal Accountant, Sponsored Projects Office 
X 9:03 a.m. Rebecca Valentine, Data Entry Clerk 
X 9:03 a.m. Ashlynn Siquieros, Financial Aid Officer 
X 9:03 a.m. Frances Benavidez, Program Director, NSF TEAC, O'odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: 
X 9:03 a.m. Jai Juan, Recruiter 
X 9:03 a.m. Jay Juan, Chief of Operations 
X 9:03 a.m. Kristen Eberhardt, Project Director, Title III Grant 
X 9:03 a.m. LeAnn Miles, Office Coordinator, Division for Sustainability 
X 9:03 a.m. Myriah Cypriano, Office Coordinator, Student Services and Student Life 
X 9:03 a.m. Liz (Ofelia) Zepeda, Library Director 

2



X 9:03 a.m. Shawn Nez, IT Support Technician I 
X 9:03 a.m. Sylvia Hendricks, Director of Student Life 
X 9:03 a.m. June Starr, Computer Literacy Coordinator Instructor, NTIA Grant 
X 9:03 a.m. Ingrid Segundo, Director of Sponsored Projects 
X 9:03 a.m. Jenny Narcho, Project Coordinator, O'odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: 
X 9:03 a.m. Anselmo Ramon, Chair of Workforce & Community Development 
X 9:03 a.m. Pauline Nasewytewa, Workforce & Community Development Advisor 
X 9:03 a.m. Adrian Quijada, Director, Land Grant Office of Sustainability 
X 9:03 a.m. Diana Antone, Financial Aid Manager 
X 9:03 a.m. Carmella Ortega, Grants Coordinator, Sponsored Projects Office 
X 9:03 a.m. Annastasia Gonzalez, Office Coordinator, Operations 
X 9:03 a.m. Ben Jose, Research Assistant, Office of Institutional Effectiveness 
X 9:03 a.m. Nicole Boni, Financal Aid Officer 
X 9:03 a.m. Ernestine Segundo, Office Coordinator, Apprentice Program 

2. Invocation

The invocation was given by Trustee Mary Bliss.

3. Review and Approval of Agenda

The meeting agenda was reviewed. Items 2, 3, 5 & 7 were designated to be moved to the
Executive Session. A motion was made to approve the meeting agenda with changes.

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles to approve the meeting agenda with 
changes. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT. 
MOTION APPROVED 

5. Announcements and Upcoming Events

The TOCC All Staff meeting scheduled for Friday, March 15, 2024 has been cancelled.

Executive Summary: TOCC BOT acted on the following at the March 14, 2024 regular meeting: 
• Approved the February 08, 2024 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes as presented.
• Accepted the January 2024 Financial Report as presented.
• Accepted the February 2024 Human Resources report as presented.
• Approved to continue TOCC legal representation with Big Fire Law & Policy Group, Leonika

Charging-Davison.
• By consensus approved to move forward with the proposal as provided by ESB Design+Build

dated March 14, 2024 for combination gymnasium, kitchen & student lounge.

3



The TOCC 25th Anniversary event was a success! Thanks to June Starr, Jane Latane’ and others 
that contributed toward the planning of the event. 

 
The Horseshoeing Training sponsored by the TOCC Land Grant Office for Sustainability (LGOS) is 
being held March 11-22, 2024 at Wiṣag Koṣ  Maṣcamakuḍ . .             Photos were shared with the 
President’s Office and will be distributed college-wide. Please contact Dr. Adrian Quijada with 
any questions. 

 
The Himdag Committee is reviving the visits to the various districts of the Nation for new faculty 
and employees. All associated with TOCC are welcome. A Schuk Toak District trip is tentatively 
set for Friday, April 12, 2024. More detailed information will be forthcoming. 

 
The Siquieros family is appreciative of the thoughts, prayers and donations afforded them for 
Bernard Siquieros’ (baḍ) Celebration of Life service. TOCC rented chairs & tables and partnered 
with the staff at the Himdag Ki: to transport the items, namely Myles Gallagher and Rocky (Ivan) 
Whitman. 
 
The following was submitted to the TOCC Office of President upon BOT Vice Chairperson 
Siquieros’ passing: 
Statement by Bernard Siquieros: “I loved working with the college and how we worked together 
as a team. It was a pleasure seeing what it has turned into and an honor to be a part of it from 
the beginning. Thank you.” 

 
Camillus Lopez’ (baḍ) Funeral Arrangements: 
Sunday, March 17, 2024 – St. Clare Catholic Church, Anegam Village, 6pm 
Monday, March 18, 2024 - Burial, Santa Rosa South Cemetery, 7am 
 
The AIHEC Student Conference was well attended and TOCC students expressed appreciation for 
the opportunity to attend. The following are noted achievements from the recent forum: 
 

AIHEC Competition Winners: 
• Chess, 1st Place: Raymond Butler, Jr 
• Women's Archery, 2nd Place: Raven Alvarez 
• Art - Contemporary Jewelry, 2nd Place: Thurman Lynch 

  
Newly elected AIHEC Student Congress President: Thurman Lynch 

 
Tribal College Journal Writing Contest:  
• Best Fiction: "The New World" by Danelle Jishie 
• Honorable Mention: "Stronger Through Courage" by Tara Perez 

 
Matai pa:n (Ash bread) demonstration by Mary Bliss of Wa:k Cekṣañ on Friday, March 22, 2024 
at S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ. Information will be distributed college-wide. 
 
Clifford Pablo, Farm Manager/Extension Agent, TOCC, was honored for his dedication to 
community, resilience and the environment at the 2024 Indigenous Resilience Awards dinner on 
Tuesday, February 27, 2024. A recognition by TOCC should also be planned in the near future. 

4



6. Minutes from the February 08, 2024 regular meeting of the TOCC Board of Trustees 

Minutes from the February 08, 2024 BOT regular meeting were sent electronically and included 
in the March 2024 board packet. Secretary Parvello reviewed the information and no 
corrections were made. 
 
A motion was made to approve the February 08, 2024 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting 
minutes as presented. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Jonas Robles, Seconded by Mary Bliss to approve the February 08, 2024 TOCC 
Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

7. Call to the Audience – None 
 

8. Coronavirus Update 

The COVID-19 guidance continues to evolve and be updated. By consensus the BOT advised the 
TOCC Administration to utilize the new CDC guidelines. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. January 2024 Financials – Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 

Dean Miguel reviewed the January 2024 Financial Report with the TOCC Board of Trustees. 

A motion was made to accept the January 2024 Financial Report as presented. 
   

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Treena Parvello to accept the January 2024 Financial 
Report as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 
 

2. Human Resources Report – Joseph Renegar, Human Resources Generalist 

HR Generalist Renegar reviewed the February 2024 Resource List and the Employee Vacancy 
Activity Log. 

The following new hires were introduced to the board: 

Chloe Begay, Human Resources Generalist 

Julie McIntyre, Curriculum Specialist 

Reyna Noriega, Computer Literacy Trainer 

5



A motion was made to accept the Human Resources Report for February 2024 as presented. 
   

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles to accept the Human Resources Report for 
February 2024 as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 
 

3. 10:00 a.m. - Big Fire Law Firm - Leonika Charging-Davison 

Leonika Charging-Davison met with the board to explain the establishment of Cedar Tree Native 
Law in the Phoenix Metro area and what options were available to TOCC with legal services. 

The BOT will discuss this item during the Executive Session. 

 

4. 10:15 a.m. – SCAC Accreditation Update – Dr. Martin Ahumada, President; Dr. Lisa Eutsey, 
Provost 

Drs. Ahumada and Eutsey shared the document received from the Higher Learning Commission 
(HLC) regarding the status of accreditation that SCAC has applied for. 

A written report was requested outlining timelines and the status of SCAC candidacy for 
accreditation. 

 

5. 2023 TOCC Annual Report – Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 

Monthly calendars were distributed to the BOT designating options for district council meeting 
dates. All districts – except Sells and Sif Oidak - responded to the request for upcoming meeting 
dates. The BOT reviewed and determined which meetings to attend to present the 2023 TOCC 
Annual Report. 

 

REPORTS – BY DIVISION and DIVISION COMPONENTS 

The TOCC Division and Division Component Reports were reviewed and high points summarized. 

 
1. President, Human Resources, Operations, O'odham Ñi'okĭ Ki:, Apprenticeship Program 

 
2. Education Division, O’ohana Ki:, NSF STEM 

 
3. Student Services Division 

 
4. Sustainability, Information Technology, Office of Institutional Effectiveness, 

6



Workforce and Community Development 

 
5. Student Life, Residence Life, Athletics & Wellness, Security 

 
 

GENERAL MATTERS 
 

8. Executive Session 
The BOT excused the meeting guests and convened for an Executive Session at 11:18 a.m. 

 

BOT notes Mar 14 meeting: Executive Session 

 
SCAC and accreditation journey: Thanks to presenters. Like more with specifics and update – a 1 

or 2 page document would be good. We’ll reply upon receipt. General Discussion. 
 

Legal representation: First option for attorney representation as described in February 27, 

2024 letter from Big Fire’s Leonika Charging-Davison: Motion to stay with Leonika Charging- 

Davison by Mary Bliss, seconded by Jonas Robles; all in favor (4-0) 

 

Multipurpose building proposal: Discussion and formal decision by consensus (4-0) to move 

forward with the proposal as provided by ESB and dated March 14, 2024 for combination 

gymnasium, kitchen, student lounge. Need: owner’s representative, attorney review of contract 

draft, attorney opinion on procurement process. 

 

Adjourn: motion by Mary, second by Jonas, 12:46 PM – all agree (4-0) 

 

  

/s/Paul Robertson 

 

 

 

7



 

ADJOURNMENT – 12:46 p.m. 
 

A motion was made to adjourn the March 14, 2024 TOCC BOT regular meeting. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles to adjourn the March 14, 2024 TOCC BOT 
regular meeting. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 
TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THRU:  PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

FROM:  JOSEPH RENEGAR, INTERIM HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT:        AGENDA ITEM—MARCH 2024 RESOURCE LIST 

DATE:        3/31/2024 

CC:  FILE 

Background  
The following employees are recommended for the Board’s consideration new hires, transfer, and 

separation. 
 

Recommendation 

The President recommends the approval of the employees on the attached list for new hires, transfer, and 
separation for the Tohono O'odham Community College. 
  

44



RESOURCE LIST 
March 2024 

New Hire: 

Name Position Date 
Rene Garciaguirre Student Success Coordinator 3/25/2024 

 

Mr. Garciaguirre was Specialized Program Teacher Assistant with Rancho 
High School for 2 years. He was Specialized Program Teacher Assistant 
with Jay W. Jeffers Elementary for 7 years. He was Para-Professional with 
Clark County School District Seigle Diagnostic for 1 year. He was 
Academic Advisor with Northern Arizona University for 1 year. He was 
Research Assistant with Center for American Indian Resilience for 7 
months. He was Graduate Assistant with Norther Arizona University for 
1 year. He was Academic Advisor with Northern Arizona University for 2 
years. He was Academic Advisor II with University of Arizona for 2 years. 
He was Student Development Coordinator Senior with Northern Arizona 
University for 3 years. 
 
Mr. Garciaguirre earned his Bachelor in Arts in Anthropology from 
University of Nevada. He earned his Master of Arts in Applied 
Anthropology from Northern Arizona University. He is currently working 
on obtaining his Master of Education in Educational Leadership from 
Northern Arizona University. 

 

 

Transfers: 

Name Position Date 
Eunice (Lynn) 

Liston Multimedia Coordinator 3/25/2024 

Joseph Renegar Interim Human Resources Director 3/21/2024 

 

Separations: 

Name Position Date 
Aimee Farmer Chief Human Resources Officer 3/20/2024 
Camillus Lopez 

(baḍ) Tohono O’odham Language and Culture Instructor 3/10/2024 

Dehpue Zuo NTIA Project Director 3/25/2024 
 

45



 
 T

oh
on

o 
O

'o
dh

am
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t V
ac

an
cy

 A
ct

iv
ity

 L
og

  
M

ar
ch

 2
02

4 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e/
Fa

cu
lty

/E
xe

m
pt

 
 

 
Va

ca
nt

 P
os

iti
on

 
 

Di
vi

si
on

 

 
Number of Applicants 

 
Tohono O’odham 

Native American 

Other 

 
Application 

w/documents Complete 

Date forwarded to 
screening committee 

Recommended for 
Interview 

Interview Scheduled 

 
Recommendation Made 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

O
ffi

ce
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
1 

 
 

1 
 

1 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

 
 

 
 

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
HM

 re
vi

ew
(s

) 

Pr
e-

Co
lle

ge
 G

ED
 In

st
ru

ct
or

  
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
2 

 
 

2 
1 

1 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

1 
 

4/
4/

20
24

 
 

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
in

te
rv

ie
w

(s
)/

HM
 

re
vi

ew
(s

) 

Pl
um

bi
ng

 In
st

ru
ct

or
 

Ap
pr

en
tic

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce

ss
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

4 
1 

 
3 

2 
2 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
2 

 
2/

27
/2

02
4 

1 
 

Po
si

tio
n 

fil
le

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

3/
25

/2
02

4 
To

ho
no

 O
’o

dh
am

 L
an

gu
ag

e 
an

d 
Cu

ltu
re

 
In

st
ru

ct
or

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

To
ho

no
 K

os
in

 R
es

ta
ur

an
t M

an
ag

er
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

To
ho

no
 O

’o
dh

am
 S

tu
di

es
 D

ire
ct

or
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
1 

 
 

1 
 

1 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

 
1 

 
 

 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 
  

  
  

                 

46



 
To

ho
no

 O
'o

dh
am

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t V

ac
an

cy
 A

ct
iv

ity
 L

og
 

   
   

   
  M

ar
ch

 2
02

4 
   

   
   

   
   

  H
ou

rly
 

 

 
Va

ca
nt

 P
os

iti
on

 
 

Di
vi

si
on

 

 
Number of Applicants 

 
Tohono O’odham 

Native American 

Other 

 
Application 

w/documents 
Complete 

Da
te

 
fo

rw
ar

de
d 

to
 

sc
re

en
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Recommended for 
Interview 

In
te

rv
ie

w
 

Sc
he

du
le

d 

 
Recommendation 

Made 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

As
si

st
an

t-
 F

in
an

ce
 

 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 &

 F
in

an
ce

 
2 

1 
 

1 
2 

 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

 
 

 
 

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
HM

 re
vi

ew
(s

) 

Le
ad

 F
ac

ili
tie

s M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 &
 F

in
an

ce
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
1 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
1 

 
3/

25
/2

02
4 

1 
 

Pe
nd

in
g 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
pp

ro
va

l 

Li
br

ar
y 

As
si

st
an

t 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

3 
 

 
3 

3 
 

3/
31

/2
02

4 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
nd

in
g 

in
te

rv
ie

w
(s

)/
HM

 
re

vi
ew

(s
) 

M
ul

tim
ed

ia
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

O
’o

dh
am

 L
an

gu
ag

e 
Ce

nt
er

 
6 

3 
 

3 
5 

1 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

3 
 

3/
19

/2
02

4,
 

3/
21

/2
02

4 
1 

1 
Po

si
tio

n 
fil

le
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
3/

25
/2

02
4 

Ph
oe

ni
x 

Ce
nt

er
 S

ite
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
St

ud
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
1 

 
 

1 
1 

 
3/

31
/2

02
4 

1 
 

3/
28

/2
02

4 
 

1 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 

 

47



TOCC GRANT PROPOSAL SUBMISSION AUTHORIZATION

DATE: April 1, 2024 . SUBMITTED BY: Diona Williams & Dr. Laura Sujo-Montes

Funding Agency: American Indian College Fund

Funding Number: __2024-2027_____

Letter of Intent required? Not required Due Date (if applicable): April 30, 2024

Grant Submission Date: April 2024

Entity for proposal submission: Cultivating Native Student Success: Supporting the Native Student
Journey. Delphina Thomas dthomas@collegefund.org

Maximum Award: $310,000 total award for three years

Duration of grant: three years (June 2024 to May 2027)
(Note: determine if award listed is total for the grant period, or per year.)

Number of Awards: Unknown Match Required? No
(Note: if match required, specify how much, and type, i.e., cash, in kind, etc.)

Indirect Cost allowed? N/A Amount (%):

Department or Division Requesting Grant: Education D

Background and Justification: The Ihduwiyayapi: Advancing Indigenous Early Childhood Education Grant

Program will support engagement with TCU partners to build the capacity of their early childhood

education programs through strategies that support program planning, enhance program capacity,

incorporate language and culture, family engagement, develop and support student pathways to

completion, and faculty support. All program participants are required to participate in the College Fund

Indigenous Early Childhood Education community of practice (CoP).

1

48



Objectives

To continue to build capacity within the early childhood education program at Tohono O’odham

Community College by strengthening community engagement, developing an early childhood education

advisory board, continuing early childhood gatherings, enhancing courses, providing internship students

support, and completing the program.

● Part 1: Visioning, Planning, and Storytelling

● Part 2: Administrative and Institutional Capacity

● Part 3: Parent and Family Engagement

● Part 4: Pathways to Development

● Part 5: Student Support

● Part 6: Student Completion Support

Methods

How the project will meet the TOCC Mission and Strategic Plans:

This project meets the TOCC Mission to “strengthen individuals, families, and communities through
holistic, quality higher education services.” The grant funding will help in meeting the following
corollaries from the strategic plan:

● Enhance Access, Reach and Community: Serve the Tohono O’odham Nation and beyond while
creating a vibrant local academic community.

● Establish Curricular Pathways: Build on TOCC’s strengths and on community needs to support
students’ academic and career interests.

● Model Sustainability: Adapt to and address the challenges posed by the changing environment.
● Promote Excellence: Engage students in learning experiences that support and challenge them to

change themselves and the world.

Proposed Principal Investigator or Project Director: Laura E Sujo-Montes and Diona Williams

Lead writer: Diona Williams and Laura E Sujo-Montes__

Current staff to be paid under the grant? (List): 0

New staff to be added? (Number and positions): __One part-time grant coordinator.

Contractors (external evaluator required, etc): _N/A ____

Approval by Division Dean and Date: __________________________________

Review by Leadership and Approval Date:_ _ __________________________

Board Review and Approval Date: _____________________________________

2

04-03-2024

49



 

TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

 
TO:  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THRU: YOLANDA PACHECO, DEAN OF STUDENT SERVICES, DR. PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

FROM:  BRANDI ESPUMA, DUAL ENROLLMENT COORDINATOR 

SUBJECT: DUAL ENROLLMENT - INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH Ajo Unified School 
Distirct 

CC:  Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 
 
 

 
Background: 

The Dual Enrollment program has been designed to be a bridge for high schools and community 
colleges. The Program at TOCC provides the “enrollment of an eligible secondary student in 
post-secondary course for which the student receives both credit toward a high school diploma 
and college credit toward a vocational certificate or an associate.” 

 
Students who are enrolled in the program, excel in specific courses designed to provide 
convenience, support, and academic rigor for high school students. The Dual Enrollment 
Program has provided many opportunities for students to accomplish writing, reading, language, 
history, and math requirements for TOCC and state universities. 

 
Only through our collaborative effort can we provide equal access and opportunity for more 
students from underrepresented areas. This will allow us to assist and educate students on college 
readiness and provide a successful transition from secondary to post-secondary institutions. 

 
Justification: 

To further grow our reach to high school students, a working relationship with Ajo Unified 
School District has led to the establishment of dual enrollment courses within their curriculum. 
AUSD has a total minority enrollment of 84%, and 64% of students are economically 
disadvantaged. This will help further the mission of serving high school students in minority 
communities and help them excel in their journey in higher education. 

 

Action Requested: 
Request the Board of Trustees’ approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement between Ajo 
Unified School District and Tohono O’odham Community College Dual Enrollment Program. 

 
Recommendation: 
The President recommends approval. 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



President’s Report for March/April 2024 
Page 1 of 2  
 

Item Actions Discussion/Resolution/Comments 

1. Annual Report 
(AR) for FY 2023 

Along with BOT members in 
San Lucy, S-cuk Du’ag, and 
San Xavier Districts, 
presented the Annual 
Report. 

Report was welcomed in each of the 
three districts. There were some 
questions about health care 
curriculum and much acclaim for the 
work of the Language Center. 

2. Audit Assisted in providing 
materials for the FY2023 
audit. 

Audit completed and presented to 
the BOT by KLA on March 25 during a 
special meeting and was approved. 
Joann Miguel submitted the 
completed audit to the Nation and to 
federal government. 

3. Dual-Enrollment 
initiative. 

Circulated draft director 
position that would be 
funded by the 2m dollars 
from AZ. May recommend 
adoption at April BOT.   

More intense and focused work 
needed if this partnership with local 
high schools is to bear fruit. 

4. Cyberinfrastruct
ure 

Continue to outsource much 
of IT to TechStack and to A. 
Bates.  

Situation is stable. Need to review 
organization chart and make updates 
in near future. 

5. Presidential 
transition. 

Discussed with 
Administrative Team. Met 
with consultant re. 
preparation for HLC visit in 
2026.  

Committee has been meeting 
regularly.  

6. Building 
construction 

Mentioned the proposed 
athletic/student 
lounge/kitchen facility at the 
S-cuk Du’ag District 
presentation. One question 
asked: Where is the 
proposed location? 

Draft contract has been circulated 
and marked up by Big Fire attorneys 
and sent to ESB+ for review. 
Procurement language is 
recommended by attorneys. Will 
follow up early April 2024. 

7. Human 
Resources 

Abrupt departure of HR 
Director has created some 
difficulties.  

Staff are filling in with reporting and 
other needed tasks and an HR 
Generalist has been detailed to the 
position until it can be filled. 

62



  
M

ar
ch

 2
02

4 
B

oa
rd

 R
ep

or
t A

ct
iv

iti
es

  
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
  

    
Is

su
es

/I
te

m
s  

D
is

cu
ss

io
n/

 S
itu

at
io

n 
  

Su
m

m
ar

y/
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
  

Pr
es

id
en

tia
l S

ea
rc

h 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

; r
ev

ie
w

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
ca

nd
id

at
es

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

 b
y 

se
ar

ch
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 
In

-P
ro

gr
es

s 

H
R

IS
 S

ys
te

m
 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

H
R

IS
 P

la
nn

in
g 

w
ith

 A
ar

on
 B

an
ks

 to
 re

vi
ew

 N
EO

ED
 a

nd
 J1

 
H

R
 M

od
ul

e 
In

-P
ro

gr
es

s 

R
ec

or
ds

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
  

H
R

 R
ec

or
ds

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
 in

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

an
d 

m
an

ua
l 

fil
es

  
In

-P
ro

gr
es

s 

A
dv

er
tis

e 
/ R

ec
ru

it 
Po

si
tio

ns
  

C
on

tin
uo

us
ly

 a
dv

er
tis

e 
va

ca
nt

 p
os

iti
on

s, 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s, 

pr
e-

hi
re

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

in
g;

 a
nd

 o
n-

bo
ar

di
ng

 
ca

nd
id

at
es

  

In
-P

ro
gr

es
s 

N
ew

 H
ire

 O
rie

nt
at

io
n 

W
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

re
fin

in
g 

th
e 

ne
w

 h
ire

 o
rie

nt
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

In
-P

ro
gr

es
s 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1
 

63



 
Report to TOCC Board of Trustees:  
Jay Juan  
Chief of Operations  
March 2024 
 
 

 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Leach field – Septic Tank  Vegetation in the leach field and septic tank area at S-cuk Du’ag 

Maṣcamakuḍ needs maintenance.  TON Well Maintenance was contracted 
to address the leach field and septic issues.  

Meet with TON Office of 
Emergency Management 
(OEM) 

We met with TON OEM to discuss potential site for training.  We 
walked through some of the classroom and conference rooms. OEM 
ultimately decided to hold their training elsewhere.  

Horseshoe Training Helped determine classrooms and area for the horseshoe training.   
GED renovations  Finished flooring, walls, and painting in the GED testing area.  Area is 

ready to be used.   
Printer power issues. New printer in I-we: mta Ki: at S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ needs more 

amperage to operate properly.  The Apprenticeship Electric class was able 
to install correct outlet.    

Stove and oven need 
repairs.   

Scheduled General Parts Company to come out and repair the stove at  
Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ and oven at S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ. 

Need holes for bread 
demonstration.   

We dug three (3) holes outside by the Ramada outside I-we: mta Ki: for 
a demonstration of underground bread baking.   

SchoolDude Calls for 
service 

There were 36 requests for service via SchoolDude for the month of 
March.  18 were maintenance related and the other 18 were vehicle 
requests. 

Transportation – Student 
Riders 

2/26 - 3/1/2024 
19 students, 3.8 average for 5 days. 
 
3/4 - 3/9/2024 
7 students, 1.6 average for 6 days. 
 
3/11 - 3/15/2024 
25 students, 5 average for 5 days. 
 
3/18 - 3/22/2024 
13 students, 2.6 average for 5 days. 
 
3/25 - 2/28/2024 
21 students,  5.25 average for 4 days. 

64



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE

To: Tohono O'odham Community College Board of Trustees

Thru: Paul Robertson, President

From: Ronald Geronimo, Director
Frances Benavidez, Program Director, NSF TEAC

Subject: March 2024 Board Report

O'odham Ñi'oki ̆ Ki:
Key Issues / Items Addressed in February 2024

Strategic Initiative Issues/ Items Actions/Assessments
Language
Documentation – Print
and Video

Developing new digital and
print resources.

- Translation Requests

Fulfilled seven (7) translation requests for Nation’s

programs, TOCC and neighboring communities.

-

Capacity Building:
Training Program for
Speakers on
Transcribing, Translating,
and Teaching O’odham

Building capacity for TON
Head Start Centers:
Pisinemo, Santa Rosa,
North Komelic to transition
to immersion Head Start
Centers and build the
language fluency of the
parents and families.

- Continued Planning and Capacity Building Toward an
Immersion Early Childhood Program
The O’odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: is meeting with TON Education
Dept. and Head Start Center leadership for on-going
planning and development of immersion Head Start
Centers.

A delegation of 18 Head Start coordinators, teachers,
teacher aides, families and ONK staff, traveled to New
Mexico March 12-15 to visit fully developed early
childhood immersion programs in Jemez and Cochiti
Pueblo. The group learned best practices in
developing immersion-based learning experiences for
early learners.

Networking and
Outreach – Organizing
with the Community

Promoting Language Use
and Language Visibility

- O’odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: hosted and participated in eight
(8) outreach events, reaching about 250 people:

Storytelling in North Komelik as part of the Head Start
Center’s Family Engagement Nights.

Matai Pa:n Making Workshop in partnership with Ms.
Mary Bliss of Wa:k Cekṣañ who shared about the
method of making bread in a fire pit.

Kaskalo:n Community Workshop in partnership with
TOCC’s Workforce and Community Development
Program. Ron led a demonstration of kaskalo:n
making using O’odham terms.

O’odham ñi’okĭ immersion lunches (3) at Wiṣag Koṣ
to promote language learning through interactive
activities.

Provided a language awareness presentation to Pisin
Mo’o District Council in partnership with the Language
Awareness Advisory Committee. The district was
supportive of the campaign and shared positive
feedback on moving forward and areas to consider for
reaching youth.

65



Participated in Pisin mo’o District Day to share about
resources, services, and initiatives underway through
the language center.

- Planning and organizing a summer youth language
conference: working with the TON Education Dept.
and other language focused programs to plan a youth
language conference. The conference is scheduled for
the end of June.

- Planning and organizing a TOCC Spring Community
Gathering – working closely with Dr. Robertson and
the collegewide community to bring the Nation’s
districts/communities to campus to see the college’s
growth, and hear about the evolution of TOCC
programs through a program showcase. Live music,
free food, fun run/fun walk, and games and activities
will also be a part of the day’s celebration.

Other Staff - Position Changes - O’odham Ñi’okĭ Ki: New Hires
Ms. Eunice “Lynn” Liston was hired as an additional
Multimedia Coordinator for the language center. She
specializes in graphic design and is the lead creator of
visual language learning aids, and games and activities
designed to promote language use.

Ms. Letitia Martin was approved a reassignment to the
language center as the Administrative Assistant. In
addition to her skills and qualifications Ms. Martin has
long-term aspirations to be a part of language work
and enhance her knowledge and skill sets toward
language reclamation initiatives.

- Himdag Committee
ONK staff continue to organize bi-monthly meetings
and work collaboratively across all college programs to
host Himdag Committee sponsored events.

66



Board of Trustees Report 
Laura Sujo-Montes, Dean of Academics 

Education Division March 2024 
 

Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 

Curricular Matters Current Efforts ● We continue to work on articulations/alignment 
of our curricula with UA’s so our students can 
transfer the most number of credit hours into 
UA’s programs. During March, we met with the 
School of Natural Resources and the Environment 
(SNRE) and with the Indigenous Teaching 
Education Project (ITEP) for preliminary 
conversations on alignment of curricula. 

● With the help of Julie McIntyre, our curriculum 
specialist, we are making good headway into 
finalizing the program learning outcomes and 
course learning outcomes so they are reviewed 
by the curriculum and the Himdag committees. 

● Two new programs in Community Public Health 
are going through the pertinent channels for 
approval. We hope to bring them to the BOT for 
the May meeting. 

 

Faculty 
Evaluations Faculty received their annual faculty evaluations. 

Miscellaneous Issues 

Dual Enrollment, 
Strategic Enrollment 
Management Grant 
Summer and Fall 
registration 

● Besides BUSD, we have met with Ha:san and Ajo 
High School. They are interested in partnering 
with us to offer dual enrollment classes. 

● We met with a consulting firm paid for by the 
SEM grant to analyze our advising processes. 

● Summer and Fall registration have started strong. 
 

 
O’ohana Ki:, March 2024 
 
 

Issue/Point Discussion Summary/resolution 
MakerSpace 
 

As part of the AICF 
Digigrant, the defunct 
computer lab is being 
converted into a 
makerspace.  

● The order was placed for the equipment. 
Sewing, laser engraving, vinyl design, t-shirt 
printing, and a few other project-based 
materials have been ordered. 

67



 
 

● The 3-D printers have been used so far to 
create test projects in order to refine services 
and practices. Adrienne Brown will be taking 
the lead on the space with the assistance of the 
student workers.  

Staffing, Work, and 
Space 

Staffing has been 
changing in the library in 
a positive direction. The 
student workers and 
tutors are doing well and 
have been a welcome 
addition to O’ohana Ki: 

 

● Tiffany Marks was hired on as a student 
worker.  

● The library assistant position is pending review 
from the panel.  

● The new copier has been installed and access is 
pending for some library staff workers. 

● The Academic Library portion of this year’s 
IPEDS report was submitted. Library collection 
circulation was up this year which was a good 
sign.  

● Library staff assisted with preparations of the 
materials for the 25th Anniversary event. 

Engagement Library usage has 
continued to increase. 

The busiest times seem to be at the end of the day and 
the early evening. Working students have been coming 
to the library for assistance with technology, scanning, 
printing, and a general study space. 

 
 
NSF STEM Grant  
Report Month: March 2024 
Submitted by: Teresa Newberry, Ph.D. 
 

Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 
This project is piloting 
the use of the Man in 
the Maze Educational 
Journey to increase 
student success and 
resilience in their 
academic programs. 

Work is on-going in using Man in the 
Maze Educational Journey for student 
success at TOCC by working with faculty 
and creating animations. 

Work is continuing for the Man in the Maze 
animations. 
Goal 2: Indigenize and transform TOCC STEM 
Curriculum. Obj. 3.2 MiME Educational Journey 
with support by Cultural Mentor and Student 
Self-Assessment. 

Support for students 
during their transitions 
from TOCC to 
universities.   

Working with UA on 2+2’s for Physical 
and Life Science programs in Health, and 
Environment.  The on-going “Walking 
Together in STEM” partnership aims to 
provide support for students 
transferring into Engineering and 
Environmental Sciences.   

The S-STEM “Walking Together in STEM” grant 
proposal which is a partnership between UA, 
PCC. & TOCC was submitted.  The Community 
and Public Health transfer pathways are 
completed and the curriculum documents 
submitted for the A.A. in Community and 
Public Health. We also met with College of 
Veterinary Medicine to discuss pathways for 
students.   

68



Goal 4: Support for Transitions from High 
School to TOCC to University 

The Tohono Field 
Studies (TFS) Center 
will provide 
opportunities for 
students to 
professional skills so 
that they are prepared 
for a career in the 
sciences.   

The TOCC Living Laboratory (TLL) will 
provide experiential, hands-on learning 
for students at TOCC, restore habitat to 
increase biodiversity, and provide 
opportunities for field studies.  
Students’ professional skills will also be 
enhanced by placement in internships 
through partnerships with TON and 
other agencies.   
 

The Food Forest section of the TLL Ma:cig 
Oidag has been completed and there is on-
going work on other sections of the Ma:cig 
Oidag.  Student Research Assistants and 
students in BIO 109N courses have assisted 
with the planting.  Plots for the Ma:cig Oidag 
Biodiversity Project have been established.  
There is on-going planning for Phase I and 
Phase II of the TLL Ma:cig Oidag.    
Goal 3:  Promote professional preparedness of 
students. 

 
 

69



Student Services Highlights   April 2024 

Dean of Student Services – Yolanda Pacheco 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
AIHEC Student Conference 22 Students, 10 Staff attended 

the conference in Minneapolis, 
MN. March 9-13, 2024.  

Competitions included: Archery, 
Art, Film, Critical Inquiry, 
Chess, Traditional Plants, 
Scientific Poster, etc.  
Awards: Chess - 1st place, Art 
Contemporary 2nd place, 
Women’s Archery – 2nd place, 
TCJ Writing Competition – 
Fiction.   
Thurman Lynch was voted in as 
the President of AIHEC Student 
Congress.   

AICF Digitization Grant travel 
event 

Visit to College of the 
Muscogee Nation (CMN) 

Brandi Espuma and Jai Juan 
traveled to Oklahoma to visit 
CMN and present on the TOCC 
Digitization Grant activities. 
CMN also received the 
Digitization Grant. It was time of 
sharing and learning.  

 

Phoenix Center – Director, Cassandra Scott 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
Visits to the Center March visitors 78 Total, 14 Staff visits 
Activities/Outreach March events -AIHEC coaching sessions with 

Critical Inquiry team 
-RMACAC Virtual College Fair 
(only Tribal college participated) 
-TOCC 25th year anniversary 
attendance and volunteering 
-AIHEC Conference 
-Advising in person at S-Ki:kig 
Maṣcama Ki: 
-Gila River Indian Community 
College Fair 
-San Carlos instructor/student 
meeting at  S-Ki:kig Maṣcama Ki: 
-Phoenix Union High School Senior 
Career Night & Fashion Show 
-Ongoing HR search for Phx Center 
Technician 

70



-Phoenix Indian Center collaboration 
summer 2024 move 
-M3 moving planning for summer 
2024 

   
 

Disability Resources – Dr. Anthony Osborn 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
Wraparounds Conducted wraparounds 

to address student 
accommodations and 
progress. 

The students’ accommodations 
were reviewed specifically 
related to performance. Minor 
adjustments were made to 
accommodations based on 
student progress. 

ADA Issue Conducted Research 
Related to a Student 
living in the dorms 
related to ADA. 

Provided perspective related to 
the case. Ongoing. 
Awaiting further contact with 
Social Security Case 
Manager. 

ADA Issue Communicated with case 
manager for a student 
requesting 
accommodations. 

Awaiting final documentation 
from diagnosing agency 
before proceeding with 
wraparound. 

 

 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
New Business: 
AIHEC Conference Coaching; Art 
& Film - 3/9-3/13 

Attended the annual AIHEC 
conference for the first time as a 
coach. 

Student Thurman Lynch entered 
the Art competition showcasing 
his silversmithing; he won 2nd 
place in the jewelry competition. 
Nathan Ramon entered the film 
competition and showcased his 
film throughout the conference. 

Ongoing: Education Partners Ajo High School 
 
 
 
Ha:san Preparatory School 

Ajo submitted the final draft of 
IGA on 3/29/24. Pending 
President and BOT approval. 
 
Had a meeting with Ha:san 
Principal and teachers involved 
with the DE program to discuss 
upcoming courses for Fall 2024 
and further course sequencing. 

Ongoing: A Student’s Journey Recruitment and Student 
Interviews 

The ASJ team has restarted 
recruitment with an application 

71



extension since UA hired a new 
coordinator. We have visited 
several classrooms, the SCAC 
campus, and the AISES student 
meeting. 

Ongoing: AICF Digitization Grant 
& SEM Grant 

Visit the College of the 
Muscogee Nation 

AICF and CMN invited Digi 
members to visit and compare 
the project’s progress since 
obtaining the grant. 
The visit was fulfilling as I got 
to experience another TCU. I do 
not have much TCU experience, 
so it was an excellent 
opportunity to recognize other 
tribal nations doing great work. 

Ongoing: Outreach Indivisible Tohono - Pride 
Event Planning 
 
 
 
Baboquivari High School - 
STEM Day 

Met with a team planning the 
upcoming June pride event that 
TOCC has participated in the 
past. 
 
On 3/21, BHS held a STEM day, 
and I, as a BHS alumna, spoke to 
middle school cohorts. Later in 
the day, Sophie Hungrywolf and 
I held an Admission/Dual 
Enrollment recruitment table. 

 

72



Board of Trustees Report 
Dean for Sustainability Mario Montes-Helu, Ph.D. 

 
Key Issues/Items Addressed in March 2024 

 

Issues/Items Discussion/ 
Situation 

Summary/Resolution 

Workforce and 
Community 
Development (WCD) 
 
 

Tohono Kosin We are still looking for the Tohono Kosin Manager 
position, but no applicants so far. Tyrone Mandre and 
the assistant cook are providing lunch and breakfast for 
on-site training and workshops during this month. The 
Tohono Kosin was used for community training called 
“Kaskalo:N provided by personnel of the O’odham 
Language Center and food was provided by the Kosin 
to more than 50 participants in the event. We use the 
Tohono Kosin building for the event. 

GED program 
Dollar General 
Grant 

This month we have 3 students who passed the GED 
exam. We are expecting about 8 students to get their 
GED by the end of the fiscal year. The Dollar General 
grant is used to support the students and the goal this 
year is to have 10 GED graduates. 

National 
Telecommunications 
Information 
Administration 
(NTIA) Grant 

Computer 
training 

We are providing literacy training to the following 
districts: Sells, Baboquivari, Chukut Kuk, Scuk Du Ag, 
Hickiwan, San Lucy, Pisinimo, Gu Achi, San Xavier. 
The participation of members of the community is high 
and we have trainees advancing in their computer 
management knowledge. 

IT Department  
  

Jenzabar One 
testing phase 
deployment 
and IT issues 

After the upgrade to Jenzabar One, we still have some 
issues to resolve.  The good thing is that personnel 
have found workarounds for them to continue the 
student support. Several projects are ongoing 
regarding Jenzabar processes that are being 
addressed by the IT team. New photocopiers were 
bought by Title III and are now installed around 
campus. 
We also got support from the State of Arizona and 
Homeland Security for improving the cybersecurity of 
our IT department. 
We are addressing the Multi-Factor Authentication 
(MFA) for all IT systems, especially for Jenzabar One. 
The Jenzabar support team has recommended some 
alternatives to address the issue. 

73



Land Grant Office of 
Sustainability 

Horseshoeing 
training  

We have the Horseshoeing training going for 3 weeks 
and will continue for 5 weeks during April and May. We 
have 8 students taking the training. After working for 
two weeks at Wiṣag Koṣ they are now being trained at 
the Rodeo grounds. Once the students complete the 
training they will get the necessary tools to work in the 
horseshoeing trade in the Nation. 

Institutional 
Effectiveness Office 

IPeds reports IEO continues collecting the information to provide the 
IPeds report on time. The due date is April 3, 2024. The 
IEO will start collecting the graduation survey from the 
students graduating this May. That will provide an 
understanding of the student experience during their 
time at TOCC. 

 

74



Board of Trustees Report 
Anselmo Ramon 

Chair of Workforce & Community Development 
March 2024 Report 

 
Challenges-Resolutions and Accomplishments 

 
Program Status Recruitment  Summary 

Apprenticeship 
(WCD) 
Directs any 
new 
Apprenticeship 
inquiries and 
former 
students who 
would like to 
re-enroll or 
enroll to Mr. 
Jackson Doe, 
Apprenticeship 
Director. 
 
Community 
members 
continue to 
come in to 
request 
Apprenticeship 
support in 
plumbing, 
carpentry and 
electrical. 

Solar Installer Program 

Courses to be offered Fall 2024 
session. SLR 104 (1) Basic 
Electricity 3 Credits SLR  225 (1) 
Load Calculation 3 Credits 

WCD, Office of Sustainability and 
Education Dean continue to meet 
with Tohono O’odham Health Care 
Professionals to discuss a 
partnership with TOCC’s health 
care related occupations. A new 
health care liaison position has 
been created to assist with the 
technical part of setting up and 
administering a CNA program at 
TOCC. 
 
CNA classroom equipment has 
been arriving to campus and will 
be set up in a designated classroom 
A completion date is spring 2024. 
 
 

WCD program continues to 
advertise the Solar Panel 
Installer program and 
encourage students and 
community members to take 
advantage of the ‘free books 
and tuition’ offered by Tohono 
O’odham Community College.  

WCD offers the solar courses 
on Saturday and this has 
provided them the flexibility to 
work during the week and take 
the courses on the weekends.  

SEM Meetings with SSD and 
Education. Strategic Enrollment 
Management benchmarking 
process for Cultivating Native 
Student Success at TOCC. The 
project leads are Student Services 
and the Education Division. WCD 
Pre-College GED program is 
included in this project.  

 

The Solar program 
continues to advertise and 
promote the use of solar 
energy as a viable source of 
energy. 

Student are provided with 
hands-on training for the 
solar panel installer 
program. 

 

 

 

The SEM grant will support 
the Pre-College GED 
program in its annual GED 
Adult Education 
Conference. 

Tohono Kosin Tohono Kosin is in a transition into 
a restaurant with courses on a short 
term basis (micro-credential) and 
continue to prepare courses for 
direct employment in the food 
industry. 

Tohono Kosin, Lead cook, 
Tyrone Mandre and Antonola 
have been working with Wisag 
Kos departments to provide 
breakfast and lunches for on-site 
trainings and meetings. Wisag 
students benefit from these 
activities as they are invited to 
breakfast and lunch as they are 
available. 
 
 

TOCC office of 
Sustainability and WCD 
will continue to 
communicate with BHS and 
TOHS for services 
associated with the food 
service industry. 
 
 

75



Pre-College 
GED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
One Pre-College in-person GED 
position is currently open and 
interviews are being scheduled as 
candidates apply and who meet the 
criteria for the posisiton. 
 
The Pre-College GED program has 
Aztec software that assist students 
in building academic skills in all of 
the GED content areas, 4 
computers are available for student 
use in the GED classroom. 
 
 

 

(NTIA) Team continues to work 
with the districts on the Tohono 
O’odham Nation to set up trainings 
and recruit participants. Currently 
Sif Oidak is the only district not 
being served by the NTIA grant 
due to district office closure. 

Math tutoring continues to assist 
students to master the math 
concepts required to pass the 
official GED exam. The Math 
tutor provides one to one 
tutoring along with the Aztec 
software that mirrors the actual 
GED Math exam. 
 
(3) students. One student passed 
the official GED math exam on 
March 12, 2024. Civics is the 
only exam remaining for the 
student to completely finish her 
GED requirements. 
(2) Students are working with 
Linda to prepare for the official 
Math exam to be taken in April 
and May 2024. 
 
Attendance is at 82% & 92% 
rate for the month of March 
2024. 

Marvin Carmen & Reyna 
Noriega have been offering 
Computer Literacy Training in 
the Districts on the Tohono 
O’odham Nation. Sells, 
Baboquivari, Chukut Kuk, Scuk 
Du Ag, Hickiwan, San Lucy, 
Pisinimo, Gu Achi, San Xavier 
and soon to be added, Sif Oidak 

 

Bridget Pre-College GED 
Online Instructor provided 
has scheduled an online 
zoom orientation for new 
Pre-College GED applicants 
on March 1, 2024. 
 
Students who need to use 
our wifi are always welcome 
to come to Wisag Kos and 
connect with the instructor 
in our GED classroom. 
 

• A study room has 
been established for 
GED students on 
campus 

 
GED: Zoom- 8 students 
- 2 Independent study 
(3) Official exams passed in 
the month of March 
 
Kaskalon:N Community 
Workshop held on Thursday 
March 28, 2024. Over 50 
were in attendance. The 
workshops was provided in 
O’odham by the O’odham 
Niok Ki, Mr. Ron 
Gernonimo and Niok Ki 
staff. 
 
Tohono Kosin provided a 
Turkey lunch. 

 

76



        
Ñia, Oya G-T-Taccui Am Hab E-ju: 

Our Dream Fulfilled 
 

TO:  Tohono O’odham Community College Board of Trustees 

THRU: Paul Robertson, President 

FROM: Sylvia Hendricks, Director of Student Life 

DATE:  April 1, 2024 

SUBJECT: Student Life Staff April 2024 Board Reports 
 
Sylvia Hendricks- Director of Student Life 
  Key Issues/Items addressed in 2024 March 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Director of Student Life 
   Monthly Highlights 

 Just a few Highlights for the month for March 2024:  

 March was filled with training sessions, meeting with staff and celebrating the 
TOCC 25th Year Anniversary. Travelled to Washington DC on 3/9-13/2024, 
for the National Association of Federally Impacted Schools (NAFIS) with 
BUSD  
 

 The Presidential Search and Screening Committee continues to meet on a 
weekly basis, Wednesday from 9 am – 12 pm as the process planning 
continues with HR and the Board of Trustees. The following dates were 
scheduled for interviews for candidates that I also was part of in this process: 

o 3/5/2024- 2 interviews conducted 
o 3/6/2024- 3 interviews conducted 

The HR Department continues to update the Board on the progress 
 

 The following are extra meetings and events I attended during the month of 
March:  

o TOCC 25th Year Anniversary at DDC- 3/8/224  
o Security & Resident Coordinator Training Session- 3/22/2024 
o ADA Meeting w/other TOCC Staff- 3/22/2024 
o Audit Review & Approval- 3/25/2024 
o Residence Life Staff Meeting- 3/27/2024 

Quick highlights on a couple of the extra meetings: 
o The Security & Resident Coordinator training session was conducted 

by the Counselor Alberta Espinosa and Contracted Psychologist Tony 
Osborn on Epilepsy Management Plan and behavioral training as both 
areas work closely with students and we presently have one student 

77



 
Anne Miguel & Luke Vavages- Residence Life Coordinators 

Key Issues/Items addressed in 2024 March 

that does have seizures and in order for the safety of the student and 
staff we felt this training needed to be conducted. 

o The ADA Meeting was with the same individuals that conducted the 
training along with the Residence Life Coordinator and Dean of 
Student Services regarding ADA provisions for students.  

o The Residence Life Staff Meeting, was in regards to Luke Vavages 
returning to work remotely, going over the work to assign him, 
updates on the resident students, etc.  
 

 Attended the March Board of Trustees Meeting (in person) and the All Staff 
Meeting (virtually) along with all weekly and bi-weekly meetings, such as the 
weekly Admin and Himdag Meetings, etc.  
 

 I also continue to meet and work with the Food Program, Security, the 
Wellness/Athletic Program and the Residence Life staff on projects they are 
working on, making sure they have all the resources they need to complete 
projects. 

 
Food Program 
Information      

Just a couple of highlights in regards to the Food Program: 

• The Food Program continues to provide delicious and healthy meals for 
Breakfast, Lunch, and Dinner for dorm students as all positions are filled and 
they also provide excellent service.  They also continue to provide healthy 
snacks for students and staff  

• The Food Program is also working with departments in providing meals for 
events, meetings and community events.       
 

Community relations 
and outside college 
contacts 

All areas of Student Life as well as the Athletic/Wellness Program have been 
collaborating with other programs on and off the nation and within the TOCC 
departments, as you will read in this report.  
 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment  

Current Residents - Presently 21 students (13 women and 8 men) reside in the dorms. 
- Updates on students leaving the dorms temporally and permanently: 

o One (1) student went home for religious purposes; 
o One (1) student was asked to vacate the dorms;    
o 1 student attended the AISES meeting in Tucson                                                                     

- Spring Break, 3/4-8/2024 there were 8 students that remained on campus  
- Eight (8) Students attended the 2024 AIEHC conference in MN. Some of the 

students that attended brought home trophies for the Archery Competition and 
one of the dorm students was selected for the President of the Student 
Congress with AIHEC. 

- Students attended the Artist Talk event held in Tucson.   
 

Preparation of physical 
structures 

- Minor repairs continue to be worked on by Facilities.       
- Handicap access and safety issues were identified and will be discussed with                  

78



 
Drew Harris- Athletic/Wellness Manager 
Key Issues/Items addressed in 2024 March 

the Operation director.   
- Telephone connection was identified as a problem after a student was unable 

to call for assistance when a personal cell phone. 
 

 Alarm System - Alarm system needs repair to stop the constant beeping. This is an ongoing 
project                 

Residence Life 
Coordinator position 

- Residence Life Coordinator and Director continue to meet regularly to update 
applications, concerns from students, staff and others.   

- Luke Vavages will be retuning May 2024 and has permission to work 
remotely until then.                

- Anne Miguel, Residence Life Coordinator attended a presentation on Seizure 
Procedures and Mental Health    

- Residence Life Coordinator worked on several events.  
- Met with Security on several issues such as additional checks, medical 

conditions,  
- Residence Coordinator continues to attend Wraparound meetings, where 

updates on students’ academic status are shared. These meetings provide 
valuable information to better assist students 

- One student requires additional attention in basic life skills which is provided 
on a daily basis.    

- Meetings with RAs to provide direction on cleanliness in/outside of dorms. 
- Continue to work with the kitchen staff on notifying students meals are ready 

through emails. 
- Disciplinary Action taken on a student after numerous warnings on their 

conduct.  
- A stray dog arrived on campus, dorm students were reminded not to feed the 

dog, and one of the students has recently found a home and owner for the dog. 
 

Resident 
Assistants (RA) 

- The RA schedule was modified in March due to an RA attending AIHEC.    
- A phone is issued when students are using their own phones was discussed. 
- Due to class schedules meeting with RA’s are held after lunch on Tuesdays. 
- Cleaning supplies were purchased this month and students have been using to 

clean the dorms.                      

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Working status a) As on today overall registrants to the Apedag Ki is 213. 

b) In the month of March, 3 new registrants have signed up to the Apedag Ki: 
c) Overall user traffic in the month of March was 332.  
d) Social Media- Instagram: 598 over Followers as of March. No new followers. 

Facebook: 3.2K likes, 3.3K Followers 
 

Coaching and Recruiting a) Currently in the offseason.   
b) Recruitment for next season has begun.  

Scheduling a) The Apedag Ki: classes offered now are: 
a.  Cardio Boxing, Step Class; 
b.  HIIT training, Jujutsu; 
c.  Tai Chi, Massage Therapy; 

79



 
Valentine Lee- Lead Security 
Key Issues/Items addressed in 2024 March 

Student  
Issue/Disciplines  

• One report for the month of March on 3/28/2024 
• The issue was with the Residence Life Program with disciplinary action taken. 

 
Incidents report 
 

• A total of two (2) incidents reports for the month of March: 
o One was an undocumented person on campus. Border Patrol was called, but 

the person left before the Border Patrol arrived on campus. 
o The other one was the incident in the dorm, mentioned above.   

 
Security Staff • Security documented a couple of incidents in March, which are mentioned 

above. 
• The Lead Security attended AIHEC Student Conference as the Archery Coach. 
• Security staff attended the mandatory training with Alberta Espinosa, 

Counselor, on Epilepsy on 3/22/2024.   
• We continue to help each other out when needed.. 

 
 

d. Acupuncture; 
e. Wellness through Art. 
f. “Biggest Winner Challenge” is a weight loss challenge to the school and 

community has launched with 86 participants registered. The challenge has 
officially ended and results will be giving to participants in April. 
 

Academics a) Continuous follow up with runners on classes/credits and class schedule. 
 

Administration a) Apedag Ki: Staff working on spending plan for the remaining 23-24 fiscal year.  
b) Working on organizing and uploading past Athletics’ Student Athletes files for 

possible future audit.  
c) Worked closely with Title 3 Project Director to discuss and plan details of proposed 

Multi-Purpose Gym.  Multi-Purpose was approved.  
 

Wellness a) A total of 10 individuals are currently enrolled in the Personal Training Program.   
b) Apedag ki: participated with the Santa Rosa Day School Field Day Event March 22nd.  
c) Apedag ki: Staff Participated in the Baboquivari HS Community Day March 22nd.  

 
Budget/Fundraising a) The Apedag Ki: Wellness/Athletic Manager has started working on a plan to spend 

down the remaining budget before the spending period ends.   
 

Outreach/Community 
Service 

a) The Apedag Ki: and the Saguaro National Park collaborated with each other to offer 
the community a nature hike at Saguaro National Park. There were 20 attendees. 
Another Hike is planned for March.  

b) A collaboration with HOPP to host an Autism Awareness Run/Walk is currently being 
planned. 

c) The Apedag Ki: will be hosting the Fun Run/Walk, along with presenting at the TOCC 
Spring Fling on Thursday 3/18/2024.  

d) Apedag Ki: staff currently planning the TOCC Youth Basketball Camp for June 
e) Apedag ki: staff will also participate in the Nation’s Children’s Play Day in May.  

 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 

80


	ADPF731.tmp
	Employment Vacancy Activity Log
	March 2024
	Vacant Position
	Division

	Interview Scheduled
	No
	Yes
	No
	Yes
	No
	Employment Vacancy Activity Log
	March 2024
	Hourly
	Interview Scheduled
	Vacant Position
	Division

	No
	Yes
	No
	Yes
	No

	ADP7003.tmp
	Our Dream Fulfilled

	ADPF0AA.tmp
	Our Dream Fulfilled




